
 Marysville City Council Work Session 
March 3, 2014                                        7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
March 17, 2014 City Council meeting. 

 
Call to Order 
 
Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Roll Call 
 
Approval of the  Agenda 
 
Committee Reports 
 
Presentations 
 
Discussion Items 
 
Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 

 
1.  Approval of the February 10, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes. 

 
Consent 
 
2.  Approval of the February 19, 2014 Claims in the Amount of $853,848.91; Paid by 
Check Number’s 90165 through 90333 with Check Number’s 89560 and 89840 Voided. 
 
3.  Approval of the February 20, 2014 Payroll in the Amount of $820,918.07; Paid by 
Check Number’s 27399 through 27433. 
 
8.  Approval of the February 26, 2014 Claims in the Amount of $357,298.90; Paid by 
Check Number’s 90334 through 90485 with no Check Numbers Voided. 
 
Review Bids 
 
4.  Consider Awarding the Bid for the Comeford Park Spray Park. 
 
5.  Consider Awarding the Police Evidence Building Contract to Obom Construction in 
the Amount of $103,930.20 Including Washington State Sales Tax. 
 
Public Hearings  
 
Action Item 
 
6.  Consider Approving the Emergency Agreement for Inmate Housing with South 
Correctional Entity (SCORE). 
 
9.  Hearing Examiner Agreement Between Kevin McDonald and City Of Marysville. 
 

1



 Marysville City Council Work Session 
March 3, 2014                                        7:00 p.m.                                      City Hall 

Work Sessions are for City Council study and orientation – Public Input will be received at the 
March 17, 2014 City Council meeting. 

 
New Business 
 
7.  Consider an Ordinance Related to Floodplain Management Requirements, 
Amending Section(s) 22E.020.030 Basis for Establishing the Areas of Special Flood 
Hazard; 22E.020.150 (1)(b)(ii) Specific Standards; 22A.020.200 “S” Definitions – 
Substantial Improvement (Floodplain Management); and Adding a New Section 
22E.020.210 Severability.  
 
Legal   
 
Mayor’s Business 
 
Staff Business  
 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Executive Session 
 
A.    Litigation 
 
B.    Personnel 
 
C.    Real Estate 
 
Adjourn 
 
Special Accommodations:  The City of Marysville strives to provide accessible 
meetings for people with disabilities.  Please contact the City Clerk’s office at (360) 363-
8000 or 1-800-833-6384 (Voice Relay), 1-800-833-6388 (TDD Relay) two days prior to 
the meeting date if any special accommodations are needed for this meeting.       
 

2



Index #1
 

3



February 10, 2014 7:00 p.m. City Hall 
 

Page 1 of 1 

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance/Roll Call 7:03 p.m.
Approval of the Agenda Approved
Committee Reports 
Presentations 
Employee Services Awards/5 Year Prosecutors Anniversary: Al, 
Jennifer, Josie 

Presented

Executive Session 7:31
Litigation – One potential litigation item 
Regular Meeting Reconvened 7:42
Audience Participation 
Approval of Minutes  
Approval of the January 13, 2014 City Council Work Session Minutes. Approved
Consent Agenda  
Approval of the January 22, 2014 Claims in the Amount of $909,096.08; 
Paid by Check Number’s 89638 through 89746 with Check Number’s 
88740, 89433, 89554, and 89593 Voided. 

Approved

Approval of the January 17, 2014 Payroll in the Amount of $836,909.34; 
Paid by Check Number’s 27318 through 27355. 

Approved

Approval of the Final Plat of Rock Creek North Division 2, Phase 2. Approved
Approval of the Remedial Action Grant between the Washington State 
Department of Ecology and the City of Marysville. 

Approved

Approval of the January 29, 2014 Claims in the Amount of $588,843.47; 
Paid by Check Number’s 89747 through 89958 with No Checks Voided. 

Approved

Approval of the February 5, 2014 Payroll in the Amount of $1,546,576.01; 
Paid by Check Number’s 27356 through 27398. 

Approved

Review Bids 
Public Hearings 
New Business 
Consider an Ordinance Amending Marysville Municipal Code (MMC) 
Chapter 12.20 Entitled “Animals and Vehicles on Sidewalk”; Providing for 
Severability; and Effective Date.   

Approved
Ord. No. 2953

Consider a Resolution establishing that Special Market Conditions Exist 
with Respect to the Purchase of Certain Water Filtration Equipment and 
Technical Assistance and thereby waiving that Competitive Bidding Occur. 

Approved
Res. No. 2356

Consider an I-502 Recreation Marijuana Regulation Alternative 
Discussion.   

Continued

Legal 
Mayor’s Business 
Staff Business 
Call on Councilmembers 
Adjournment 8:15 p.m.
 

Item 1 - 1

4



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 1 of 7 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 

Regular Meeting 
February 10, 2014 

 
 

Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Nehring called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. and led those present in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Chief Administrative Officer Hirashima gave the roll call. The following staff and 
councilmembers were in attendance. 
 
Mayor: Jon Nehring 
 
Council: Steve Muller, Kamille Norton, Jeff Seibert, Michael 

Stevens1, Rob Toyer, Jeff Vaughan, and Donna Wright 
 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: Chief Administrative Officer Gloria Hirashima, Finance 

Director Sandy Langdon, Police Chief Rick Smith, City 
Attorney Grant Weed, Public Works Director Kevin Nielsen, 
Parks and Recreation Director Jim Ballew, Information 
Services Manager Worth Norton, and Recording Secretary 
Laurie Hugdahl.  

 
Mayor Nehring said that Councilmember Stevens was running a little late but was 
expected to be here later. 
 
Mayor Nehring stated the need to have an Executive Session to discuss potential 
litigation after Presentations. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Muller, to 
approve the agenda with the change of moving Executive Session to immediately after  
Presentations to discuss item 8 for potential litigation. Motion passed unanimously  
(6-0). 
 

                                                 
1 Michael Stevens arrived at 7:25 p.m. 

Item 1 - 2

5



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 of 7 

 

Committee Reports  
 
Councilmember Vaughan reported on the Public Works Committee where the following 
items were discussed: 

 Railroad traffic through the City was reviewed. The costs of various options were 
discussed. Information was provided as to what other cities paid for 
overcrossings and undercrossings. In general it costs almost twice as much for 
undercrossings than overcrossings. The Committee also discussed the possibility 
of addressing train traffic by modifying train speeds through the City.  

 There was discussion about the 1st and 3rd Street LID design which is at 60%. 
 There was an update on the Whiskey Ridge and Sunnyside Annexations. The 

cost to citizens in those areas for utilities has gone down 47% below what they 
were paying under PUD and Waste Management. This is good news for those 
residents.  

 
Presentations 
 
A.  Employee Services Awards/5 Year Prosecutors Anniversary 
 
5 Year Prosecutors Anniversary: Al, Jennifer, Josie – 5 years 
 
City Attorney Grant Weed reviewed the history of the prosecutors in the City and 
commended Al and Jennifer for their excellent work. He also remembered Josie and the 
contributions she made to the City.  
 
Council recessed into Executive Session at 7:31 p.m. for ten minutes to discuss one 
item regarding potential litigation with no action to be taken. Council reconvened at 7:42 
p.m. into the regular meeting.  
 
Audience Participation - None 
 
 

Approval of Minutes (Written Comment Only Accepted from Audience.) 
 
1. Approval of the January 13, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes. 
 
Motion made by Councilmember Wright, seconded by Councilmember Vaughan, to 
approve the January 13, 2014 City Council Meeting Minutes. Motion passed 
unanimously (7-0). 
 
Consent  
 
2. Approval of the January 22, 2014 Claims in the Amount of $909,096.08; Paid by 

Check Number’s 89638 through 89746 with Check Number’s 88740, 89433, 
89554, and 89593 Voided. 

Item 1 - 3

6



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 of 7 

 
3. Approval of the January 17, 2014 Payroll in the Amount of $836,909.34; Paid by 

Check Number’s 27318 through 27355. 
 
4. Approval of the Final Plat of Rock Creek North Division 2, Phase 2. 
 
9. Approval of the Remedial Action Grant between the Washington State 

Department of Ecology and the City of Marysville. 
 

10.  Approval of the January 29, 2014 Claims in the Amount of $588,843.47; Paid by 
Check Number’s 89747 through 89958 with No Checks Voided.  

 
11.  Approval of the February 5, 2014 Payroll in the Amount of $1,546,576.01; Paid 

by Check Number’s 27356 though 27398.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Stevens, to 
approve Consent Agenda items 2, 3, 4, 9, 10, and 11. Motion passed unanimously (7-
0). 
 
Review Bids  
 
Public Hearings 
 
New Business 
 
6.   Consider an Ordinance Amending Marysville Municipal Code (MMC) Chapter 

12.20 Entitled “Animals and Vehicles on Sidewalk”; Providing for Severability; 
and Effective Date.   

 
Commander Lamoureux stated that staff had added “Non Motorized” to the title for 
clarification. The agenda bill was amended to identify and address the concerns of 
Councilmember Seibert regarding whether or not this covers improved shoulders. He 
explained that no changes were made to the amendment because it is already covered 
under the Model Traffic Ordinance and is not required to be part of the sidewalk 
amendment.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Vaughan, seconded by Councilmember Seibert, to 
approve Ordinance No. 2953. Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
7.    Consider a Resolution establishing that Special Market Conditions Exist with 

Respect to the Purchase of Certain Water Filtration Equipment and Technical 
Assistance and thereby waiving that Competitive Bidding Occur. 

 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to adopt 
Resolution No. 2356.  Motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

Item 1 - 4

7



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 4 of 7 

8.   Consider an I-502 Recreation Marijuana Regulation Alternative Discussion.   
 
CAO Hirashima explained that the Planning Commission had sent forward a 
recommendation of prohibition of producers, processors, and retailers of marijuana in 
the City of Marysville. She reviewed other alternatives available to the Council and 
requested direction from the Council for any further research they would like staff to do 
or for information regarding the next steps on this item.  
 
Councilmember Muller pointed out that there are currently three bills in the legislature 
that pertain to this. He asked when those would be concluded. CAO Hirashima stated 
she expected they would be wrapped up in March. She summarized the subject matter 
of the three bills.  
 
Councilmember Vaughan commented that it is important to consider what it happening 
in the legislature. He noted that there is also some uncertainty with the Attorney General 
Opinion and other matters. Since the Council has time, he recommended studying this 
further and waiting to see what happens with the legislature and some other cities. He 
spoke in support of having the Planning Commission do additional study on zoning 
options as well as staff keeping Council apprised of happenings in the legislature and 
other legal matters. He pointed out that the City still has time under the moratorium to 
wait and do further study. He noted that the City has moved expeditiously and is ahead 
of schedule with the work plan. 
 
Councilmember Stevens asked for clarification about the direction for the Planning 
Commission. He commented that it seems prudent to have the Planning Commission 
look at zoning options in the event that other legislation comes down from above.  
 
Councilmember Muller concurred. Even though the Planning Commission’s 
recommendation was prohibition, he thought it would be wise to look at zoning options 
in case it is necessary in the future.  
 
Councilmember Seibert commented that staff had made recommendations to the 
Planning Commission for zoning, but didn’t see that this was ever completed. He was 
interested in seeing that as well.  
 
Motion made by Councilmember Muller, seconded by Councilmember Toyer, to 
continue with the moratorium and revisit this issue in April following completion of the 
legislation session in Olympia and to send the topic back to Planning Commission for a 
review of potential zoning plan to be completed by April 1. Motion passed unanimously 
(7-0).  
 
Legal 
 

Item 1 - 5

8



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 5 of 7 

Mayor’s Business 
 
Mayor Nehring: 

 He attended the Community Transit meeting where they had committee 
assignments and elected officers for the new year. 

 An Advanced Manufacturing Breakfast was held here in Council Chambers last 
week. This was an informative meeting and important in conjunction with the 
City’s plans in the north end with the MIC.  

 There was a nice ribbon cutting for Button Gear Work Wear at 94th and State. 
 He met with Puget Sound Regional Council’s new Executive Director, Josh 

Brown and updated him on the Marysville’s efforts with regards to SR529 and I-5 
Interchanges as well as other city priorities. Mayor Nehring said he was looking 
forward to Mr. Brown’s leadership. 

 HB 6906 is on to Ways and Means. Things appear to be on track. 
 Marysville Diversity Council had a great event this past Saturday called Race: 

The Power of Illusion.  
 
Staff Business 
 
Jim Ballew: 

 They are going to start to close down Comeford Park in preparation for 
construction of the spray park. About half the park will be closed until the spray 
park is completed. 

 The Grand Opening of Doleshel Park will be on the 22nd.  
 He talked with Tulalip Tribes today regarding graffiti activity. They are meeting 

next week to discuss alternatives. As soon as the weather improves tagged 
areas will be repainted.  

 
Chief Smith: 

 Police have arrested a couple of graffiti “artists” over the last couple weeks. 
 Thanks to Commander Lamoureux for his work on Ordinance 2953. He also 

thanked Lt. Thomas for his work on I-502. He expressed appreciation for 
Council’s caution, care, and diligence. He stated that he believes it is wise to 
approach this as they are approaching it.  

 The diversity event was a great event.  
 He attended a memorial service for Greg Kanehan’s father. 
 This weekend there was a robbery where someone impersonated a police 

officer. Police arrested someone in regards to a threats case. They also made a 
drug arrest at City Center Motel.  

 He commended whoever put together the front page of the budget books.   
 
Kevin Nielsen gave an update on activity related to the recent snowstorm. 
 
Sandy Langdon: 

 Finance Committee next Wednesday. 
 Thanks to Kevin Nielsen for the new LED lights.  

Item 1 - 6

9



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 6 of 7 

 Thanks for getting sweepers out to pick up sand. 
 
Grant Weed: 

 He and Sandy Langdon are working to get the TBD Resolution that was adopted 
transmitted to the County Elections Department so they can review it and go 
through the process to put it on the ballot in April. 

 He stated that there was no need for any further Executive Session. 
 
Gloria Hirashima: 

 Staff will be coordinating an Economic Development Meeting with the committee 
and some of the chamber members.  

 Staff has initiated the Fire services analysis regarding fire alternatives. The 
consultant will be scheduling meetings with council members to talk about 
alternatives going forward.  

 
Call on Councilmembers 
 
Kamille Norton reminded everyone that tomorrow is Election Day, so make sure to vote. 
 
Steve Muller had no further comments.  
 
Rob Toyer had no further comments.  
 
Michael Stevens encouraged everyone to get ballots in. 
 
Jeff Seibert referred to the robbery mentioned by Chief Smith and asked what type of 
things citizens should look out for with someone impersonating a police officer.  Chief 
Smith noted that citizens can ask for the ID or commission card, who they work for, who 
they’re assigned to, or employee number. He also recommended staying in a public 
setting and noted that the car should have lights flashing. 
 
Donna Wright had no comments. 
 
Jeff Vaughan had no comments. 
 
Executive Session  
 
A.  Litigation  
 
B.  Personnel  
 
C.  Real Estate 
 

Item 1 - 7

10



DRAFT 

 
2/10/14 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 

Page 7 of 7 

Adjournment 
 
Seeing no further business Mayor Nehring adjourned the meeting at 8:15 p.m. 
 
Approved this _______ day of ___________________, 2014. 
 
 
_________________________ ________________________  
Mayor April O’Brien 
Jon Nehring Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 1 - 8

11



Index #2
 

12



Item 2 - 1

13



Item 2 - 2

14



Item 2 - 3

15



Item 2 - 4

16



Item 2 - 5

17



Item 2 - 6

18



Item 2 - 7

19



Item 2 - 8

20



Item 2 - 9

21



Index #3
 

22



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 
AGENDA ITEM: 
Payroll 
 

AGENDA SECTION: 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Sandy Langdon, Finance Director 
 

AGENDA NUMBER: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Blanket Certification 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Finance and Executive Departments recommend City Council approve the February 
20, 2014 payroll in the amount $820,918.07 Check No.’s 27399 through 27433.  
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 

Item 3 - 1

23



Index #8
 

24



Item 8 - 1

25



Item 8 - 2

26



Item 8 - 3

27



Item 8 - 4

28



Item 8 - 5

29



Item 8 - 6

30



Item 8 - 7

31



Item 8 - 8

32



Item 8 - 9

33



Item 8 - 10

34



Index #4
 

35



 

 

CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 

 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014

 

AGENDA ITEM:  

Contract Award – Comeford Park Spray Park 

PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL:  

Jeff Laycock, Project Manager  

DEPARTMENT:    

Public Works, Engineering 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Certified Bid Tabulation 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

31000076.563000, P1201 $X 

  

SUMMARY: 

The project will construct a new spray park facility at Comeford Park.   
 
The project was advertised for a March 6, 2014 bid opening.  The City received X bids as shown 
on the attached bid tabulation.  The low bidder was X at a total cost of X.  The project was 
estimated at X.  References have been checked and found to be satisfactory. 
 

Contract Bid (Includes Sales Tax):  $X 
Management Reserve:  $X 

 Construction Total:  $X 
 
  
      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

Staff recommends that Council authorize the Mayor to award the bid for the Comeford Park 
Spray Park contract to X in the amount of $X including Washington State Sales Tax and approve 
a management reserve of $X for a total allocation of $X. 

 

Item 4 - 1

36



Index #5
 

37



Item 5 - 1

38



Item 5 - 2

39



Item 5 - 3

40



Index #6
 

41



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: March 3, 2014 

AGENDA ITEM: 
Emergency Agreement for Inmate Housing with South 
Correctional Entity (SCORE) 

AGENDA SECTION: 
 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Wendy Wade, Support Services Commander 
 

AGENDA NUMBER: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Emergency Agreement for Inmate Housing Contract 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 
MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

 
 
This agreement extends the emergency contract for inmate housing with South Correctional Entity 
(SCORE).  The current agreement expired on January 31, 2014.  This agreement will expire on May 31, 
2014.   
 
City Attorney, Grant Weed, has reviewed the language contained in the contract and has 
approved it as to form.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Staff recommends that council authorize the Mayor to sign the SCORE agreement for jail 
services. 
 
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 6 -1

42



Item 6 -2

43



Item 6 -3

44



Item 6 -4

45



Item 6 -5

46



Item 6 -6

47



Item 6 -7

48



Item 6 -8

49



Item 6 -9

50



Item 6 -10

51



Item 6 -11

52



Item 6 -12

53



Item 6 -13

54



Item 6 -14

55



Item 6 -15

56



Item 6 -16

57



Index #9
 

58



CITY OF MARYSVILLE AGENDA BILL 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  3/3/14 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  

Professional Services Agreement between City of Marysville and Kevin McDonald 

PREPARED BY:   DIRECTOR APPROVAL: 

Gloria Hirashima, Chief Administrative Officer  

DEPARTMENT:    

Executive 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Proposed Agreement for Hearing Examiner Services 

BUDGET CODE:  AMOUNT:   

  
  

SUMMARY: 
The proposed agreement establishes a professional services agreement between the City and 
Kevin McDonald for hearing examiner services.  Kevin McDonald has served as the City’s 
Deputy Hearing Examiner since 2006, working for McConnell/Burke through 2013 and has 
provided hearing services to the City through that period.  Due to the retirement of Ron 
McConnell in 2013, the contract for services will now be directly with Mr. McDonald.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   

Staff recommends that City Council approve the professional services agreement for hearing 
examiner services. 
 

Item 9 - 1

59



 1

HEARING EXAMINER AGREEMENT BETWEEN KEVIN MCDONALD 
AND CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into on the date last below written between the 
CITY OF MARYSVILLE, WASHINGTON (“City”) and Kevin McDonald, (“the 
Hearing Examiner”). 

WHEREAS, the City desires to retain the services of a Hearing Examiner; and   

WHEREAS, the City has passed Ordinance 2852 creating the Office of the 
Hearing Examiner under the Marysville Municipal Code, Chapter 22G.060, to 
establish a quasi-judicial hearing system which will ensure procedural due process and 
appearance of fairness in regulatory hearings; to provide greater separation of the 
administration of land use regulations from the formulation of land use policy; and to 
provide an efficient and effective process utilizing a qualified professional hearing 
examiner for hearing and determining such matters as may be committed to the hearing 
examiner’s jurisdiction; and   

WHEREAS, the Hearing Examiner has represented to the City that the Hearing 
Examiner is in compliance with the professional registration statutes of the State of 
Washington, and has signified a willingness to furnish Hearing Examiner services to the 
City; Now, therefore,  

WHEREAS the City is therefore prepared to engage the services of the 
Hearing Examiner to provide the necessary Hearing Examiner Services; and   

IN CONSIDERATION of the terms and conditions set forth below, or 
attached and incorporated and made a part hereof, the parties agree as follows:  

 1. Services by Hearing Examiner. The City hereby retains the Hearing Examiner 
to perform the professional services described in the scope of work which is attached 
hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated herein by reference. The Hearing Examiner shall 
furnish all services, labor and related equipment necessary to conduct and complete the 
work, except as specifically noted otherwise in this Agreement.  
  
 2. Compensation.  

2.1 In consideration of the Hearing Examiner performing the services under the 
Scope of Work, the City agrees to pay the Hearing Examiner $140.00 per hour for all 
work performed.  Such payment shall be full compensation for work performed or 
services rendered and for all labor, materials, supplies, equipment, and incidentals 
necessary to complete the services.  

2.2 The Hearing Examiner shall maintain time and expense records and provide 
them to the City, along with invoices for services rendered, in a timely manner and in a 
format acceptable to the City for work performed to the date of the invoice.  

2.3 Invoices shall be submitted no more frequently than once per month. All 

Item 9 - 2

60



 2

invoices shall be paid by the City within 30 days of receipt of a proper invoice, unless the 
City gives notice that the invoice is in dispute.  

2.4 The Hearing Examiner shall keep time, expense, billing, and other business 
records pertaining to this Agreement available for inspection by City representatives 
during the Hearing Examiner’s normal business hours for three (3) years after final 
payment. Copies shall be made available upon the City’s request.  The copies will be 
provided without cost if required to substantiate any billing of the Hearing Examiner, but 
the Hearing Examiner may charge the City for copies requested for any other purpose.  
 2.5 If the Hearing Examiner proposes to alter the hourly rate, notice shall be given 
to the City not less than ninety days prior to the effective date of the new hourly rate.  
 

3. Discrimination and Compliance with Laws.  
3.1 The Hearing Examiner agrees not to discriminate against any employee or 

applicant for employment or any other person in performance of this Agreement because 
of race, creed, color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other 
circumstances prohibited by federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bone 
fide occupational qualification.  

3.2 The Hearing Examiner shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and 
ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.  

. 3.3 Violation of this Paragraph 3 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and 
grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension of this Agreement by the City, in 
whole or in part, and may result in ineligibility for further work for the City.  
  
 4. Term and Termination of Agreement.  

4.1 This Agreement shall commence on the date of signature and remain in effect 
until terminated as herein provided.   

4.2 This Agreement may be terminated by the City, without cause, upon ninety 
(90) days written notice. This Agreement may be terminated by the Hearing Examiner, 
without cause, upon ninety (90) days written notice. In the event of termination, all 
finished or unfinished documents, reports, or other material or work of the Hearing 
Examiner, pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City, and the Hearing 
Examiner shall be entitled to just and equitable compensation for any satisfactory work 
completed prior to the date of termination.    

 
5. Notices. All notices affecting the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing 

and shall be given in person, by US mail, or by courier services with confirmation of 
receipt, to the addresses set forth below:  

Hearing Examiner:  

Kevin McDonald 
617 B Federal Avenue East 

 Seattle, WA 98102 
 206-941-9984 
 kdm617b@msn.com    
   
       

Item 9 - 3

61



 3

         
         
City:     
 
 Gloria Hirashima 
 Chief Administrative Officer/Community Development Director 
 1049 State Avenue 
 Marysville, WA  98270       

  
6. Ownership of Work Products. The City shall keep the official record in each 

Hearing Examiner matter and all primary copies of exhibits. The Hearing Examiner shall 
possess only secondary, working copies of all data, materials, reports, memoranda and 
any other documents or recordings developed under this Agreement. Upon notice of 
termination, consistent with Section 4 above, the Hearing Examiner shall complete any 
outstanding, unfinished matter within 90 days and consistent with state law. All 
completed decisions shall become the property of the City.  The City agrees that if it uses 
products prepared by the Hearing Examiner for purposes other than those intended in this 
Agreement, it does so at its sole risk and it agrees to hold the Hearing Examiner harmless 
from such use. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Hearing Examiner shall return 
any working copies in her possession, as requested by the City, but shall be entitled to 
retain attorney work product.  

 
7. General Administration and Management. For matters involving land use 

decisions or appeals, the City of Marysville Community Development Director, or their 
designee, shall be responsible for coordinating the work of the Hearing Examiner, shall 
provide any necessary information for and direction of the Hearing Examiner’s services 
in order to ensure that such services meet the requirements of this Agreement, and shall 
be responsible for reviewing, monitoring, and approving the quality of such work. For 
matters involving administrative appeals, the City Clerk shall be responsible for 
coordinating the work of the Hearing Examiner. The parties understand that the Hearing 
Examiner will work independently and without direct supervision and that the only 
direction provided by the City will be administrative in nature.     

 
8.  Disputes. Any dispute concerning questions of fact in connection with the 

work not disposed of by agreement between the Hearing Examiner and the City shall be 
referred for resolution to a mutually acceptable mediator. The parties shall each be 
responsible for one-half of the mediator’s fees and costs.  

 
 9. Legal Representation. Except in cases where the City elects to appeal or 
challenge an action or decision of the Hearing Examiner, the City will actively represent 
the Hearing Examiner and defend any and all legal challenges to or appeals of any action 
taken and/or decision rendered by the Hearing Examiner when acting within the scope of 
the quasi-judicial duties called for by this Agreement, to the same extent as it would for 
any other City quasi-judicial decision-maker. The costs of such legal representation shall 
not be charged to the Hearing Examiner as long as the action taken, and/or the decision 
rendered, are within the scope of the quasi-judicial duties called for in this Agreement.  

Item 9 - 4

62



 4

The City reserves the right to settle any such appeal or legal challenge to any such action 
or decision in any manner deemed appropriate by the City, with or without consulting 
with or obtaining the consent of the Hearing Examiner. In the event that any action taken, 
and/or decision rendered, is determined to be outside the scope of the Hearing 
Examiner’s quasi-judicial duties, the City shall have no obligation to represent or defend 
the Hearing Examiner or any action taken, and/or decision rendered, and the Hearing 
Examiner’s indemnity obligations set forth in this Agreement shall apply.  
  

10. Indemnity. The Hearing Examiner agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and 
defend the City, its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any and all claims, 
losses, or liability, for injuries, sickness or death of persons, including employees of the 
Hearing Examiner, or damage to property, arising out of any willful misconduct or 
negligent act, error, or omission of the Hearing Examiner, its officers, agents, or 
employees, in connection with the services required by this Agreement, provided, 
however, that:  

10.1 The Hearing Examiner’s obligations to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
shall not extend to injuries, sickness, death, or damage caused by, or resulting from the 
sole willful misconduct or sole negligence of the City, its officers, agents or employees; 
and   

10.2 The Hearing Examiner’s obligations to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
for injuries, sickness, death or damage caused by or resulting from the concurrent 
negligence or willful misconduct of the Hearing Examiner and the City, or of the Hearing 
Examiner and a third party, other than an officer, agent, or employee of the Hearing 
Examiner, shall apply only to the extent of the negligence or willful misconduct of the 
Hearing Examiner.  

10.3 The City agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the Hearing 
Examiner from and against any and all claims, losses, or liability, for injuries, sickness or 
death of persons, including employees of the City, or damage to property, arising out of 
any willful misconduct or negligent act, error, or omission of the City, its officers, agents 
or employees in connection with the services required by this Agreement, provided, 
however, that the City’s obligation to indemnify, defend and hold harmless shall not 
extend to injuries, sickness, death or damage caused by or resulting from the sole willful 
misconduct or sole negligence of the Hearing Examiner.  

 
11. City Business License. The Hearing Examiner has obtained, or agrees to 

obtain, a business license from the City prior to commencing to perform any services 
under this Agreement. The Hearing Examiner will maintain the business license in good 
standing throughout the term of this Agreement.  

 
12. Subletting or Assigning Agreement. Neither the City nor the Hearing 

Examiner shall assign or subcontract any rights, duties or interests accruing from this 
Agreement without the express prior written consent of the other.  

 
13. Simultaneous Agreements. Both the City and the Hearing Examiner 

acknowledge that the City may enter into a simultaneous agreement with another 
provider who would furnish Hearing Examiner Pro Tem services.  

Item 9 - 5

63



 5

 
14. Further Support. The City makes no commitment and assumes no obligations 

for the support of the Hearing Examiner’s activities except as set forth in this Agreement.  
 
15. Independent Contractor. The Hearing Examiner is, and shall be at all times 

during the term of this Agreement, an independent contractor. The City shall not be liable 
for, nor obligated to pay to the Hearing Examiner, or any employee of the Hearing 
Examiner, sick leave, vacation pay, overtime or any other benefit applicable to 
employees of the City, nor to pay or deduct any social security, income tax or other tax 
from the payments made to the Hearing Examiner which may arise as an incident of the 
Hearing Examiner performing services for the City. The City shall not be obligated to 
pay industrial insurance for the services rendered by the Hearing Examiner.    

 
16. Compliance and Governing Law. The Hearing Examiner shall, at all times, 

comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, ordinances, and 
regulations. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Washington.  

 
17. Non-Waiver.  Payment for any part of the work or services by the City shall 

not constitute a waiver by the City of any remedies of any type it may have against the 
Hearing Examiner for any breach of the Agreement by the Hearing Examiner, or for 
failure of the Hearing Examiner to perform work required of it under the Agreement with 
the City. Waiver of any right or entitlement under this Agreement by the City shall not 
constitute waiver of any other right or entitlement.  

 
18. Litigation.  In the event either party deems it necessary to institute legal action 

or proceedings to enforce any right or obligation under this Agreement, the parties agree 
that such actions shall be initiated in the Superior Court of the State of Washington, in 
and for Snohomish County. The parties agree that all questions shall be resolved by 
application of Washington law and that parties to such actions shall have the right to 
appeal from such decisions of the Superior Court in accordance with the law of the State 
of Washington. The Hearing Examiner hereby consents to the personal jurisdiction of the 
Superior Court of the State of Washington, in and for Snohomish County. The prevailing 
party in any such litigation shall be entitled to recover its costs, including reasonable 
attorney’s fees, in addition to any other award.  

 
19. Taxes.  The Hearing Examiner will be solely responsible for the payment of 

any and all applicable taxes related to the services provided under this Agreement and if 
such taxes are required to be passed through to the City by law, the same shall be duly 
itemized on any billings submitted to the City by the Hearing Examiner.  

Item 9 - 6

64



 6

20. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, together with attachments or addenda, 
represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes 
all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. This 
Agreement may be amended, modified or added to only by written instrument properly 
signed by both parties hereto.  

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the

 

____ 
day of _______, 2014.  

CITY OF MARYSVILLE 

      
Jon Nehring, Mayor 
Date signed:     
 

HEARING EXAMINER 

      
Print name:     
Date signed:     

 

Approved as to form:  

By:_________________________________       
Grant K. Weed, City Attorney  

Item 9 - 7

65



 7

 
EXHIBIT A  

SCOPE OF WORK  

1. Scope of Work. The Hearing Examiner shall perform all services and 
provide all goods as identified below.  
 

2. City Direction.  All duties shall be performed pursuant to the direction of 
the Chief Administrative Officer, the Planning Director or other designee.  
 
 3. Hearing Examiner Responsibilities.  
 a. The Hearing Examiner shall provide services and fulfill duties set forth in 
the following:  
  i.  Marysville Municipal Code, chapter 22G.060, Hearing Examiner; 
and  
  ii. Such other matters as may be designated by Council; and  
  iii. Provide Rules of Procedure for the Office of the Hearing Examiner 
for Council’s review and approval.  
 b. Additional services and duties described by new ordinances, regulations, 
or procedures may be added by written agreement of the parties.  
 c. The Hearing Examiner will work independently and without direct 
supervision.  They will remain fully knowledgeable regarding the City of Marysville 
zoning codes and all other City codes, ordinances, resolutions, regulations or policies 
affecting the areas of concern related to the Hearing Examiner’s duties. The City will 
provide all municipal codes, ordinances, resolutions, regulations, policies and guidelines 
and revisions thereof, necessary for the Hearing Examiner to maintain the required level 
of knowledge and understanding.  
 

4. Schedule of Hearings. Hearings shall be scheduled at mutually agreeable 
dates and times.  
 

5. Performance Standard.  All duties shall be performed to the City’s 
satisfaction, including, but not limited to, conducting orderly and impartial hearings, 
creating a professional and courteous environment for applicants, citizens and staff; and 
timely preparing findings of fact and conclusion of law which are clear and based on 
sound reasoning and all applicable law. When deemed appropriate by the Hearing 
Examiner, she will make site visits to familiarize herself with the site of the proposed 
land use and surrounding areas.  

 
6. Administrative Support.  The City of Marysville will provide 

administrative support services to the Hearing Examiner. These include:  
 a. Coordinate and assign hearing schedule with Hearing Examiner and City 
Departments;  

b. Advertise hearings according to legal requirements;  

Item 9 - 8

66



 8

 c. Attend all hearings to setup meeting room, record and create a record of 
the hearings;  
 d. Maintain the official City file for each case;  
 e. Perform administrative duties for the Hearing Examiner as required;  
 f. Coordinate distribution of Hearing Examiner’s decisions to City 
departments and all Parties of Record;  

. g. Screen correspondence, email, and telephone calls to the Hearing 
Examiner in an effort to assure that prohibited ex parte contacts are not made;  

. h. Process and approve all Hearing Examiner invoices;   
 i. Oversee any contract changes on an annual basis; and  
 j. Keep the Hearing Examiner apprised of all ordinance amendments or 
enactments relating to the provisions governing land use and Hearing Examiner services 
by sending copies of ordinances as soon as possible after adoption.  
 
 7. Access to City Legal Staff and Documents.  The Hearing Examiner shall 
be entitled to consult with the City’s legal staff and to have access to such City legal 
documents and supporting materials as may be necessary to fulfill the functions of the 
Hearing Examiner’s office, provided that such consultation and access can be permitted 
within the bounds of professional ethics and standards applicable to the Hearing 
Examiner and the City legal staff, and without jeopardizing the integrity of any pending 
proceedings before the Hearing Examiner. In the event of conflict perceived by either 
City legal staff, or the Hearing Examiner, the City shall provide access to alternate legal 
counsel as may be required by the Hearing Examiner to perform his duties under this 
Agreement.  
 
 8. Advice to the City.  The Hearing Examiner will meet with City staff and 
City Council as needed and scheduled by the City, to advise the City regarding clarity 
and adequacy of City codes, regulations, and procedures, and other legal issues bearing 
on land use, and other matters relating to the Hearing Examiner’s duties and 
responsibilities. If additional meetings are required from time-to-time, the Hearing 
Examiner and the City will mutually agree on time, place, and participants to be included 
in such discussions. The Hearing Examiner will coordinate her assessment and her advice 
to the City at least annually to identify issues and confer on possible actions the City 
might take to improve its codes, regulations, and /or processes. Hearing Examiner time 
spent on such advisory duties will be compensated at the same professional rate agreed 
above.  
 

Item 9 - 9

67



Index #7
 

68



CITY OF MARYSVILLE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR ACTION 
 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  March 17, 2014 

AGENDA ITEM:    
PA 13-034 Proposed code amendments to the “Floodplain Management”  
code                                

AGENDA SECTION: 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Cheryl Dungan, Senior Planner 

AGENDA NUMBER: 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Memo to PC 01/13/14 
2. PC Minutes 01/28/14 & 02/11/14 
3. Draft Ordinance 
 

APPROVED BY: 
 

MAYOR  CAO 

BUDGET CODE: AMOUNT: 

 
The draft amendments address language updates suggested by the Department of Ecology (DOE) 
to allow the City to remain in compliance with the “National Floodplain Insurance Program” 
(NFIP).  Every 5 years city staff meets with DOE to review the City’s compliance with the 
floodplain management Ordinance, the proposed amendments are a result of that meeting.   The 
planning commission held a workshop and public hearing on the proposed changes and are 
recommending the Council adopt the amendments as proposed.        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Planning Staff recommends the Council approve the Planning 
Commission’s recommendation to  adopt the revisions to MMC Section(s) 22E.020.150(1)(b)(ii); 
22A.020.200; and add a new section 22E.020.210.    
COUNCIL ACTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

Item 7 - 1

69



Item 7 - 2

70



Item 7 - 3

71



Item 7 - 4

72



Item 7 - 5

73



Item 7 - 6

74



Item 7 - 7

75



Item 7 - 8

76



Item 7 - 9

77



Item 7 - 10

78



Item 7 - 11

79



Item 7 - 12

80



Item 7 - 13

81



Item 7 - 14

82



Item 7 - 15

83


	Agenda
	1
	Item 1
	2
	Item 2
	3
	Item 3
	8
	Item 8
	4
	Item 4
	5
	Item 5
	6
	Item 6
	9
	Item 9
	7
	Item 7



